

MINUTES

LICENSING COMMITTEE

4.30pm – 5.40pm 31 March 2011

Present: Councillors Driver (chair), Ramsay (vice-chair), Altman, Blower,

Dylan, George, Gihawi, Hooke, Jeraj and Stephenson

Apologies: Councillors Banham and Thomas

1. MINUTES

RESOLVED to agree the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting held on 11 November 2010.

2. LICENCE AND REGISTRATION FEES

The senior licensing officer presented the report and explained that there had not been an increase to the fees over the past two years. In response to members' questions, he explained that the proposed 5% increase would cover the cost of running the licensing function and that any further increases would be considered on an annual basis. This was the previous practice and would enable incremental increases to the charges.

RESOLVED unanimously, to approve the fees detailed in the column headed 'recommended charge' of appendix A.

3. REQUEST TO RESTRICT HACKNEY CARRIAGE VERHICLE LICENCES

The senior licensing officer presented the report and circulated two further representations at the meeting. He said that if members were minded to amend the hackney carriage vehicle specification, any suggestions would need to be consulted on with the trade and the general public.

Members considered restricting the number of hackney carriage vehicle licences issued. The senior licensing officer informed members that other councils that restricted numbers, often did so due to historical reasons and due to restrictions placed on the number of vehicles allowed within city centres.

A member of the public expressed concern that the report contained population figures for various areas including the Norwich built up area and the greater Norwich area. The senior licensing officer explained that the figures were included because hackney carriage licence holders could drop off over the boundary and that

therefore, this should be taken into account. He said that under primary legislation, hackney carriage licence holders could also act as a private hire and collect customers from outside of the Norwich City Council boundary. Current legislation meant that an additional licence was not required and therefore conditions could be applied to restrict this practice.

Members considered the amendment of conditions three and four of the hackney carriage vehicle licence conditions relating to the age of vehicles. A member of the public said that, due to the slow rate of return, taxi drivers would be penalised if they had to purchase a newer vehicle. If an age limit was imposed, it was suggested that a phased approach should be used so that those with older vehicles would not be penalised. It was suggested that if a policy on exhaust emission levels was to be incorporated, conversion kits should be made available.

(Councillor Dylan left the meeting at this point).

Members of the public suggested that those already in the trade should be given the opportunity to trade up their vehicle, whilst a new proprietor would be required to purchase a newer vehicle. This would illustrate commitment to the trade and prevent a potential increase in the value of plates. They also commented that existing conditions and subsequent amendments should be monitored and enforced to ensure that they were adhered to.

The vice chair said that consideration should be given to the current enforcement of the existing rules; whether any changes to the standards or ages of vehicles should be brought in over time or just to new drivers; to encourage vehicles with lower emissions but to be fair to drivers; and that any amendments proposed by the committee should be consulted upon so that any future decisions are based upon clear evidence.

(Councillor Ramsay left the meeting at this point).

A member of the public said that the age of a vehicle should not be a consideration, as long as it was fit for purpose and passed the mechanical vehicle test. Older drivers may be penalised if they were unable to afford a new vehicle. A member suggested that the subjective term 'exceptionally good condition' should be reviewed.

In response to suggestions from members of the public, the senior licensing officer said that the hackney carriage driver's test could be made more stringent. He also said that the council's mechanical vehicle test covered specific specifications, above and beyond a normal MOT. This was due to the greater level of mileage travelled and to ensure public safety.

Members suggested that a further consultation with the trade and general public should be held on the potential capping on the number of licences issued; a cap on the number of plates available; a cap on the age of vehicles; a cap on emissions; and a harder test on the car and driver.

(Councillor George left the meeting at this point).

The senior licensing officer informed members that the department for transport considered it best practice to not restrict numbers; few other councils restricted numbers; and there was no current provision in the licensing budget to cover the predicted cost of a periodic survey which would be required to ensure that demand was being met. A member of the public said that depending on the cost of the survey, the taxi drivers may in principle, be prepared to cover the cost through increased licence fees.

A member of the public said that a flooded market meant that taxi drivers received less income and that a temporary cap could be used until demand increased.

RESOLVED:-

- (1) with four members voting in favour (Councillors Altman, Blower, Jeraj and Stephenson) and two members voting against (Councillors Gihawi and Hooke) not to pursue a policy of restricting the issue of hackney carriage vehicle licences by determining a maximum number of licences that should be granted;
- (2) with five members voting in favour (Councillors Altman, Blower, Hooke, Jeraj and Stephenson) and one abstention (Councillor Gihawi) to ask the senior committee officer to consult with the trade and general members of the public on restricting the number of licence plates available; restricting the age of vehicles; restricting emissions; amending the criteria for drivers; and to clarify the testing criteria of vehicles. To then report findings and recommendations back to members for consideration at a meeting in September 2011; and
- (3) unanimously to refer any enforcement issues to the council's enforcement team to review.

CHAIR